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I-TRUST EDUCATION

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees present their annual report together with the accounts and auditor's report of the charitable company
for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees' report,
and a directors’ report and strategic report under company law.

The trust operates two primary academies in Halifax, West Yorkshire. Its academies have a combined pupil capacity
of 840 and had 829 pupils on roll in the school census of October 2022.

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’'s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The Trustees
of the trust are also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes. of company law. The charitable
company operates as |-Trust Education.

The Members of the academy trust fulfil an over-arching; and strategic role, ensuring that the vision for the
character and ethos of the academies, and its role in the local education system, is carried forward. The Members
have less practical involvement in the management of the company, as most day-to-day management decisions are
made collectively through the Trustees and the CEO, both appointed by the Members.

The trustees of i-Trust Education are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law.
Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved, are included in
the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' liability '

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a
‘member.

Trustees' indemnities

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the trust has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and Officers
from claims arising from negligent acts, errors, or omissions whilst on trust business. The insurance provides cover
up to £5 million on any one claim and the cost for the year 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 was £18,539 under an
Education Combined Policy.

* Method of recruitment and appomtment or election of Trustees

The number of Trustees. shall be not less than three but (unless otherwise determmed by ordinary resolution) shall
not be subject to any maximum.

The Company shall have the foIIowing Trustees as set out in its Articles of Association and funding agreement:

« Any staff Directors

« Up to two parent Trustees whilst there are Local Governing Bodies, which include at least two parent
governors. If Local Governing Bodies do not have parental representatlon then two parent Trustees must
be appointed

« The Accounting Officer

« Any co-opted Trustee

» The total number of Trustees, including the Accounting Officer, who are employees of the company shall
not exceed one-third of the total number of Trustees.

« Trustees are appointed for a four-year period. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of
Trustee, any Trustee can be re-appointed or re-elected. When appointing new Trustees, the Board will
consider the skills and experience mix of existing Trustees to ensure that the Board has the necessary
skills to contribute fully to the Multi-Academy Trust's development.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

All Trustees receive a Trustees Handbook, which details, amongst other things, Trustee expectations and roles of
Trustees. The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend upon their existing experience but would
always include a tour of the Academy and a chance to meet staff and pupils. All Trustees are provided with copies of
policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their
role as Trustees.

Induction tends to be done informally and is tailored specifically to the individual. Advantage is taken of specific
courses offered by the Local Authority and other bodies. There is a staff and Trustee safeguarding and child
protection training session at the start of each academic year.

Organisational structure

The Trust Executive Board of Trustees normally meets at least six times per annum. In the 2022/23 financial year a
total of 6 meetings were held. The Board establishes an overall scheme of delegation for the governance of the
academies within the Trust and determines membership, terms of reference and procedures, Senior Leadership
Team, and other groups. The Board may from time. to time establish Working Groups to perform specific tasks over
a Iim’ited timescale.

The Board of Trustees has delegated responsibility for the delivery of the wsmn and strategy to the Iead ‘
professnonals of the Trust, including:

. The day-to-day management of each Academy in line with the Trust vision, ethos, and strategic direction
« Implementation of policies as directed by the Trust board

The Trust Board will hold the Principals and Accounting Officer to account for the performance of the Trust, including
performance of the academies within the Trust. The Senior Leadership Team within each school comprises the
Principal, Business Director/Accounting Officer, Vice Principal(s), Head of Inclusion and Curriculum Lead(s).

The following decisions are reserved to the Board of Trustees; to consider any proposals for changes to the status
or constitution of the Trust and its committee structure, to appoint or remove the Chair and/or Vice Chair, to appoint
the Accounting Officer, Principal, Vice Principal and Clerk to the Trustees, to approve the Annual Development Plan,
to agree and review the business plan, to review the compliance with audit requirements, to approve the company
accounts and have the final decision concerning the negotiation of contracts, HP & other leasing agreements. '

The Board makes all decisions concerning any change to the terms of employment of Academy staff. It approves
the admissions, exclusions, and appeals policies. The Board of Trustees is responsible for setting general policy
and making major decisions about the direction of the Trust and capital expenditure.

The Board of Trustees, Principals and Accounting Officer are responsible for the authorisation of spending within
agreed budgets; a summary of this is in the Scheme of Delegation and Financial Authorisation Levels. The
Principals are responsible for the appointment of school staff in their individual schools.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Board of Trustees is committed to taking all relevant decisions in accordance with the principles of public life as
listed in Department for Education guidance (namely objectivity, openness, and accountability) and believes that the
pay policy will help to recruit, retain, and motivate teachers, will provide the basis for sound financial and personnel
planning and will minimise the risk of grievance and discrimination.

Pay decisions are made by the Board of Trustees, which has delegated certain responsibilities and decision-making
powers to the Principals. The Principals are responsible for the establishment and review of the pay policy (subject
to the approval of the Board of Trustees) and will have full authority to take pay decisions for school staff.

The Principals and Accounting Officer pay decisions are made by the Trustees Pay Panel on behalf of the Board of
Trustees in accordance with the pay policy.

The Trustees Pay Panel consists of three Independent Trustees selected and appointed by the Board of Trustees.
The pay panel will be responsible for evaluating the Principals and Accounting Officers performance in accordance
with the Academy‘s appraisal policy and for making recommendations to the Board of Trustees regarding pay
progression. They may, at their discretion, enlist external independent advice to assist in this respect. The Board of
Trustees is committed to maintaining the statutory minimum and maximum points on all pay ranges in accordance
with the STPCD.

The Board of Trustees ensure that appropriate differentials between posts within the Trust, and for intermediate
reference points between the lower and upper points of each individual pay range, will be always maintained in
recognition of accountability and job weight, and the need to recruit, retain and motivate sufficient employees of the
required quality.

The Trusteés in determining and publishing its pay policy aims to ensure that all decisions taken on pay and
remuneration are justifiable, transparent, and fair.

Full details are contained in our Pay and Grading Policy, which is available from the Academy Office.
Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during

the relevant period _ 1
FuII-tlme equivalent employee number ' ’ ' 0.72

Perceniage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time . Number of employees
0% : : 1

1%-50% ' ’ -
51%-99% _ -
100% . = -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time -
Total pay bill _ 4,393,249
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facilty time . -

'Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percemage of
total paid facility time hours -
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations
Wainstalls School and Whitehill Community Academy remain as alliance partners within the Teaching School
Alliance along with other strategic partners.

Whitehill Community Academy and Wainstalls School have strong links with local groups and organisations
including Elim Pentecostal Church and Mount Tabor Chapel, and both schools work in collaboration with other
academies within the North Halifax, Calder Valley Clusters and the Local Authority.

Wainstalls School was designated the Calderdale Active Schools Champion for the Calder Valley Cluster in October
2022. As a 'Champion', Wainstalls works in collaboration with local schools to develop active learning within the
classroom and beyond.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Objectives and activities

The principal objective and activity of I-Trust Education is to provide free education for pupils of different abilities
between the ages of 3 and 11, to be at the heart of our community and share facnlmes with other schools and the
wider community.

Vision & Values

I-Trust Education has the highest level of aspiration for alI our pupils and aims to provide them with a world- class
education by:

. Being at the heart of and involved with each Academy's community

. Inspiring all to achieve their full potential and to reach for the highest possible standards in all they do

« Building knowledge, skills, and experiences, which prepare children for a rapidly changlng world in which
lifelong learning is essential for success

« Providing warm, caring, and nurturing environments, where all members feel valued, safe and secure,
developing self-esteem, mutual respect and tolerance

I-Truét Education is committed to improving academic standards and developing community cohesion in all learning
communities we are privileged enough to work with. We will work closely and creatively with all our partners with the
ambition to ensure that all Academies become good or outstanding with the aim of becoming world-class.

We want each Academy to maintain its own identity for the special community that it serves. By working together,
‘we strive to create Academies that children, parents, and colleagues are proud to be a part of.

Moral Purpose

Primary education gives children the opportunity to succeed and I-Trust Education will ensure that this will be the
best available for all children within the Trust. This strong moral purpose is central to the Trust and is the major
driver. We will endeavour to standardise procedures where possible but would like each individual Academy to
maintain their. own identity. We will create an effective participative learning community across the Trust so that all
children can reach their full potential.

Overall, I- Trust Education aspires to create a distinctive educational community where high-quality provision meets
the needs of all.

Disabled Persons

The trust works alongside external agencies as necessary to enable support for disabled persons. The policy of the
trust is to support recruitment and retention of students and employees with disabilities. Each academy will provide
resources for workplace assessments and make any reasonable adjustments where it is able to facilitate this.

I-Trust Education is an equal opportunities employer and is mindful of its obligations under the Equalitiés Act 2010.
The Trustees recognise that equal opportunities are an integral part of good practice within the workplace.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust
Suppliers and Customers

We invest in innovation so that we can continue to offer our students the best quality education and pastoral care
across our trust. We give our stakeholders every opportunity at consultation events or parents evenings to feedback
any concerns or development areas that we can act on. Our parents and carers value the high degree of interaction
and expertise that we offer and we have built a reputation for high standards, transparency and fair dealing in our
interactions with all our stakeholders, suppliers and customers.

Our MAT website (and our two academy websites) have a range of policies and procedures available that ensure
our suppliers and customers are as informed as they can be on our practices that we are held to on a daily basis.

Our Community and Planet

Our vision at I-Trust Education is to enable its students to achieve academic results that give them the opportunity
to transform their lives and achieve goals they didn't believe were achievable. This vision has a strong link to the
local community each academy serves with a desire to continue to develop this strong relationship on a continual
basis.

We ensure our curriculum and educational offer is accessible to all students, and we support as many of our
disadvantaged students to partake in any extra-curricular events as we can. Each individual academy supports
other charitable projects wherever it can outside the remit of the academy day-to-day operations.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Financial Model

I-Trust Education will be responsible for sound operating business practices ensuring long-term viability of the Trust.
We formulate and implement strategies for immediate impact and the preservation of long-term goals to enhance
Trust growth, and long-term sustainability. The Trust will comply with its obligations as a company, exempt charity
and public body as set out in company law, the Academies Act, and the Academies Finance Handbook and in the
Trust's funding agreement.

We implement clear financial controls with the emphasis on value for money (economy, efficiency, and
effectiveness) which gives greater emphasis on transparency and fairness. .

Control consists of three main pillars:

« Strong systems of financial management and control to implement the tasks of strategic planning,
budgeting, accounting, reporting and monitoring

« Objective internal audit which supports management and provides reasonable assurance that risk
management, control and processes are established standards and to the principles of sound financial
management for better achievement of objectives :

« The Accounting Officer is responsible for developing and implementing methods and standardised quality
management, financial control and internal audit and is accountable to the i-Trust Education Board.

All colleagues operate underAthe appropriate level of honesty, integrity, and safety and are aware of the importance
of the activities performed. Competencies, responsibilities, tasks and reporting obligations are clearly defined for all.

Funding from the ESFA and Local Education Authority will be allocated directly to Academies, which will each
maintain its own bank account and finance systems.

Our main aim is to ensure value for money within the Trust, which is transparent and fair, allowing all to achieve
their full potential and to reach for the highest possible standards.

Objectives, strategies and activities
The |-Trust Education strategic development plan sets out the strategic direction of the Trust. This strategy
underpins our decision-making to meet the key aims of the Trust over future years. Key targets within this strategic
development plan include;

« Increase quality of provision across both academies

« Expand our provision for recruitment, training and CPD to ensure the growth of an expert

« Developing new partnerships

-« Ensure a financially viable and sustainable Trust -
« Ensure structures of governance are robust and fit for purpose

Key Activities - Whitehill 2022/23

Key priorities for the year are contained in our Academy Development Pian. Improvement focuses identified for this
year include:

« To further refine our curriculum, through a clear focus on knowledge progression and sequencing of
" concepts, to maximise the impact on all learners.

« Improve assessment, personalisation and specrallst pedagogy for SEND pupils so that they learn and
remember more.

« To ensure robust and effective monitoring of attendance so that it exceeds national outcomes (for all groups
of pupils) and that the rate of persistent absence continues to decrease to a level below the National
Average.

« The school continues to have high ambition for the quality of education of all pupil groups and will strive for
English and Maths outcomes to be at least in line with national averages and improved progress measures
over time by making effective use of Recovery and Pupil Premium funding.

« To refine and develop our extended school offer by reviewing the provision, systems and processes to best
meet the needs of the children.

A further review of the Academic year is detailed below in Whitehill 2022/23 Academic Year Update
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Key Activities - Wainstalls 2022/23

Key priorities for the year are contained in our Academy Development Plan. Improvement focuses identified for this
year include:

« To effectively introduce and embed our new systematic synthetic phonics programme to further develop
early reading and improve our pupil's enjoyment, progress and attainment in reading.

- To further develop, refine and embed the design of our bespoke curriculum, including the role of subject
leaders and assessment and monitoring, to ensure that the curriculum (intent, implementation, impact) best
meets the needs of all our pupils.

« To further develop, embed and expand our Active School initiative to support and continue to imprové our
pupils’ mental, emotional and physical health and well-being.

« To pro-actively support the staff workload initiative in order to safeguard the health and well-being of all
staff.

A further review of the Academic year is detailed below in Wainstalls 2022/23 Academic Year Update.

Copies of Whitehill Community Academy and Wainstalls School Development Plans are available from the
Academy Offices.

Public benefit

Members and Trustees have referred to the public benefit guidance contained in part 1, section 4 of the Charities
Act 2011 and the SORP, to have due regard to the Charity Commission’s published general and relevant guidance
when they. have reviewed the trust's aims and objectives. This has been used in planning future activities to ensure
the primary objective of any academy in the trust is achieved rather than providing a financial return to its
shareholders.

in setting our objectives and planning our activities the Trustees have carefully considered the Charity Commissions
general guidance on-public benefit.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report
Achievements and performance
I-Trust Achievements and Performance

During 2022/23, |-Trust key achievements and performance highlights were:

« Wainstalls School has been designated the Calderdale Active Schools Champion for the Calder Valley
Cluster and has been an effective role model, providing support to other schools in developing the active
initiative within their classrooms and beyond.

» Outcomes for pupils at Wainstalls remain above the national average, and in most areas, significantly
above. )

« Attendance figures at Wainstalls remain consistently high, and pupil attendance continues to be strong
despite the national attendance issue. . .

« At Whitehill Community Academy, the combined outcomes for pupils at KS2 are above average the national
average.

» Also at Whitehill; both attendance and persistent absence figures are better than the national average.

Wainstalls School- .
Total pupils on roll in the year ended 31st August 2023 were 202: the year group split is as follows:

Year Group - INo. of Pupils
Reception 29

Year 1 30

Year 2 30

[Year 3 25

Year 4 32

lYear 5 |28

lYear 6 28

Total . 202

Wainstalls School 2022/2023 Academic Year Update .

At Wainstalls School, we continue to have very high ambitions and expectations for all. Pupils consistently do very
well; in statutory assessments the school continues to be well above national, with pupils making significant
progress. Attendance figures remain high at 96.05%, and pupil attendance continues to be strong despite the
national attendance issue. Our ambitious curriculum has been further designed and enhanced and we have
maintained our commitment to deliver a full, broad and balanced curriculum. '

The quality and effectiveness of our curriculum design, which is further enhanced by our ‘active’ commitment within
lessons, in addition to a range of high-quality educational visits, continues to effectively enthuse our pupils by
making their learning more meaningful and relevant, and by doing so has maintained our high standards in all
areas.

As a Calderdale Active School Trailblazer, we have continued to support other schools in developing active lessons
within the classroom and beyond in order to motivate, engage and enthuse children's learning, in addition to
effectively supporting pupils’ physical and mental health and well-being. In October 2022, Wainstalls School was
also designated as the Calderdale Active Schools Champion for the Calder Valley Cluster and we are very proud to
be a role model and a key driver for the active schools programme across Calderdale.

The School-Led Tutoring Programme has been highly successful, with sessions run after school for small groups of
targeted Year 4/Year 5 pupils focusing on writing, and Year 1 pupils with gaps in their phonics.

-10-
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Outcomes at the end of each key stage are strong and at the end of Key Stage 2 outcomes are well above the
national average (NA).

Each individual subject is above the National Average (NA). Reading at Wainstalls is 3% compared to the NA of
73%; maths at Wainstalls is 89% compared to NA of 73%; and writing at Wainstalls is 93% compared to NA of 71%.
The proportion of pupils that achieved a high score has increased compared to 2022; reading has progressed to
46%, an increase of 9% against a NA of 23%; writing has progressed to 7% increasing from 3% against a NA of
13%; and maths has progressed to 50% increasing by 17% against a NA of 24%.

 The progress measures from the end of Key Stage 1 for reading and maths are significant compared to national,

with writing within the national average range. Reading and maths will be in the highest 20% of the country. Pupils
.are well prepared for the next stage in their education at secondary school with 82% of puplls achlevmg the
expected standard in reading, writing and maths combined. Further details below:

Subject Wainstalls School Calderdale LA National
KS1 |Reading EXS+ 80% 67% "~ |68%
Reading GDS 37% 16% | 16%
\Writing EXS+ 73% 58% 60%
\Writing GDS 0% 4% 8%
Maths EXS+ 80% 70% 70%
Maths GDS 20% 14% 18%
Combined R, W,M EXS+ 70% 55% 56%
_ Combined R, WM GDS 0% 3% 6%
[Year 1 |Phonics Screening 90% 81% 79%
KS2 |Reading EXS+ 93% 75% 73%
Reading GDS 46% 29% 29%
\Writing EXS+ 93% 72% 71%
\Writing GDS 7% 9% - 13%
Maths EXS+ 89% 74% 73%
Maths GDS 50% 23% 24%
GPS EXS+ 93% 73% 72%
GPS GDS 54% 29% 30%
Combined R,W,M EXS+ 82% 60% 59% .
Combined R, W,M GDS 7% 6% 8%
KS2 Progress (2019 2022 2023
: Wainstalls  [National Wainstalls  |National Wainstalls National
Reading 8.0 0.0 3.5 ’ 0.1 27 0.0
Writing 2.3 0.1 1.3 0.1 0.9 0.0
[Maths 6.4 0.0 4.3 0.1 3.7 0.0

-11 -
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Whitehill Community Academy
Total pupils on roll in the year ended 31st August 2023 were 627; the year group split is as follows:

[Year Group No. of Pupils
Reception 88

Year 1 86

Year 2 _ 90

Year 3 90

Year 4 88

Year 5 90

'Year 6 95

Total 627

Whitehill Community Academy 2022/2023 Academic Year Update
At Whitehill Cbmmunity Academy children make good progress from low start points upon entry.

Outcomes at the end of EYFS and KS1 were behind national averages last year, although after significant
investment and training the Phonics Screening Check outcomes were 77.6% (broadly in line with national average
of 78.9%). Outcomes at the end of KS2 were broadly in line with national; slightly above in maths, writing and SPaG
and slightly below in reading. Positive progress was achieved in Writing and maths and the combined EXS+ was
above National at 60.6%.

The School-Led Tutoring Programme has been highly successful. We have run sessions for children both before
and after school in reading and maths which have seen children’s attainment rise. Attendance continues to recover
after Covid, and at 95% is 1.3% above national. The percentage of children who are persistently absent was 12.8%,
8.1% better than the national average. Further detailed analysis below: '

Subject hitehill CA  [Calderdale LA  [National

KS1 [Reading EXS+ ' 63% 67% 68%
Reading GDS 22% 16% 16%
\Writing EXS+ - 48% _ |58% 60%
\Writing GDS 0% 4% ’ 8%
Maths EXS+ 74% 70% 70%
Maths GDS 17% 14% 18%
Combined R,W,M EXS+ - 143% 55% 56%
Combined R, W,M GDS 0% 3% 6%
Year 1 |Phonics Screening . . 78% . 81% - 79%
KS2 |[Reading EXS+ 69% 75% 73%
Reading GDS 18% . [29% 29%
\Writing EXS+ ' 77% - [72% 71%
\Writing GDS 11% 9% 13%
[Maths EXS+ 77% 74% 73%
[Maths GDS 20% 23% 24%
'|GPS EXS+ 74% 73% 72%
GPS GDS 27% 29% 30%
Combined R,W,M EXS+ 61% 60% 59%
Combined R,W,M GDS 11% 6% 8%

-12- .
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KS2 Progress  [2019 2022 2023

Whitehill  |National \Whitehill National \Whitehill National
Reading -0.4 0.0 1.4 0.1 1.2 0.0
\Writing 1.5 0.1 2.4 0.1 1.3 0.0
Maths -0.3 0.0 2.8 0.1 0.4 0.0

-13-
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Going concern

After making approprlate enquiries the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of
the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Promoting the Success of the Company

The objects of the trust are to advance, for the public benefit, education in the United Kingdom, by establishing,
maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing academies which shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum,
whether the school is a religiously designated faith school or not.

Under section 172(1)(a) to (f) of the Companies Act 2006, Trustees of a company must act in a way most likely to
‘promote the success of the company, and in doing so must have regard to:

« The likely consequences of any decision in the long term, this is achieved by selecting appropriate KPI's
which are performance managed against alongside the trust appetite to risk management. This includes
identifying strategic and operational risks that face our constituent academies and external initiatives in line
with the overall risks facing the trust, managed by the Trustees.

« The interests of the company's employees as identified as ‘Engagement with employees’ on page 7

« The need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others as identified

' as ‘Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust’ on page 7
"« The impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment as identified as ‘Our
Community and Planet’ on page 7

« The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, this is
managed by the Board of Trustees who hold the CEO and Local Governing Bodies to account through
performance management of the Senior Leadership Group of the trust as a whole and of each academy

« The need to act fairly as between members of the company.

As Trustees of the charitable company, the Trustees have considered the interests of the trust as a whole and its
stakeholders in their decision making. The trust has a wide range of key stakeholders, including students and their
parents/carers, its employees, local communities and the government. The Trustees are highly aware of their role
~ and the role of our academies in their local communities.

The Trustees receive communication and feedback through many channels, including in particular:
« From Local Governing Body’s who act as the community link between schools, parents and communities;
« From expert professional advisors
+ From the senior management team as those with delegated responsibility for the day to day running of the
trust, and its academies.

The trust is robust in its commitment to its own code of conduct and that of its staff. It is aware of the potential
conflicts of interest and puts in place mechanisms to counter these where they apply.

-14 -
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Financial review

Most of the Multi Academy Trust income is obtained from DfE in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is
restricted to specific purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the year 1st September 2022 to 31st
August 2023 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement of financial activities.

The Multi Academy Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the DfE. In accordance with the Charities
Statement of Recommended Practice, “Accounting and Reporting by Charities” (SORP 2015), such grants are
shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund.

The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of
~ the assets concerned.

During the year ended 31st August 2023, the total expenditure of £5,800,716 was more than the recurrent grant
funding from the DfE together with other incoming resources, this resulted in an in-year deficit of £307,733
(excluding non-cash LGPS pension movements).

On 31st August 2023 the net book value of fixed assets was £8 169,792 and movement in tangible fixed assets are
shown in note 12 to the financial statements.

The MAT has taken on the deﬂdit in the Local Government Pension Scheme in-respect of its non-teaching staff
transferred on conversion. This year the scheme is in surplus and is incorporated within the Statement of Financial
" Activity with details in note 19 to the financial statements.

The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the associated support services to pupils of the MAT.

Reserves policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Multi Academy Trust annually. This review encompasses the nature of
income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The
Trustees take into consideration the plans of the Multi Academy Trust, the uncertainty over future income streams
and other key risks identified during the risk review. '

The value of free reserves which are available for general purposes as of 31st August 2023 are £79,424.

Investment policy

Due to the nature of funding, the MAT may at times hold cash balances surpius to its short-term requirements. The
Trustees have authorised the opening of additional short term bank investment accounts to take advantage of
higher interest rates. No other form of investment is authonsed
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk Management

The management of risks to the Trust is undertaken in accordance with funding agreement and the Academies Trust
Handbook. The Board is responsible for risk management and for maintaining a sound system of internal control
that supports the achievement of policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding public funds and other funds
and assets for which it is responsible. '

The Board fulfils its role by establishing the system of internal control by:

» Approving and reviewing a series of policies that underpin the internal control process

. Agreeing objectives, plans and resources by means of the Budget Approval and School Development Plan

« Approving this policy statement and attached Risk Reglster and reviewing them carefully each yeéar to
identify risks, near misses and opportunities

« Carefully consider the advice from the Auditor on internal financial controls, together with advice from any
external consultants or inspectors . '

« Reviewing estates safety and compliance via internal management and external specialist reports to give
assurances that the estate is safe, well-maintained and compliant with all the relevant regulations and
legislation, including RAAC.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Trust are detailed in the Risk Reglster. Below are the principal areas
identified as High Risk in the 2022/23 academic year.

Cost pressures have been apparent in the economy since mid-2021. Disruption to global supply chains has also
increased prices. The Russian invasion of Ukraine has significantly exacerbated these economic pressures. Unlike
" businesses, schools have no profit margin to resist the spiraling inflation and rising prices.

As well as allowing for continuously increasing energy and equipment costs, budgets that were set in June are also
having to accommodate unfunded increases to the salaries of both teachers and support staff that were announced
later in the summer. The Board of Trustees is fully aware that this may result in havmg to reduce services and
school staff over the future years should further fundlng not be made available.

The Multi Academy Trust has continued to strengthen its risk management process throughout the year by
improving the process and ensuring staff awareness. A risk register is maintained, reviewed and updated on a
regular basis. The Trustees have ensured that adequate insurance cover is in place in areas where there is still a
significant risk. The Academy has an effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more
detail in the Statement on Internal Control.

Fundraising
The Trust carries out a limited amount of fundraising, mindful of the communities within which it operates. In the -
circumstances when fundraising is undertaken, systems and controls are in place to. separate and protect funds.
The Trust is mindful of its responsibilities under the Charities (Protection and Social Investment) Act 2016 and legal .
rules and ensures all activities are agreed and monitored at Senior Leadership Team level in compliance with
relevant legal rules. Recognised standards are applied to ensure that fundraising is open, honest and respectful,
protecting the public from undue pressure to donate. Complaints are managed and monitored through the Trust's
complaints procedure. The Multi Academy Trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken
during the year was monitored by the Trustees. ' :

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
The Multi Academy Trust has consumed more than 40,000 kWh of energy in this reporting period but employs fewer
than 250 staff, therefore is not required to report under the 2018 Regulations, because of its size.
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Plans for future periods

Key priorities for the next year are contained in the Academy Development Plans, which are available from the
Academy Offices. In the next accounting period, the trust has been approved via the Yorkshire and Humber
Regional Advisory Board to work through the process of re-brokerage into two larger multi academy trusts.

Whitehill Community Academy (WCA) has started working with Trinity MAT, and it is hoped WCA will transfer out of
I-Trust within the year, and will transfer into Trinity MAT in January 2024. The transfer will benefit the school in terms
of close collaboration with its local secondary school, where the majority of pupils progress to, and also add primary
capacity to Trinity MAT. .

Wainstalls Primary School is planning to join Pennine Alliance Learning Trust during the next financial period and

- become one of the founding members of the new trust. The rapid maturing of the new multi academy trust will
commence at a scale of six academies. The transfer of Wainstalls Primary School is planned to be early in the new
calendar year. : : -

Upon completion of the re-brokerage of the two schools within I-Trust, the start of the brdcess to conclude and
dissolve |-Trust will begin with the hope that all transactions can be tied up in time for the final financial statements
in the next financial period. '

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others
The Academy and its Trustees do not act as the Custodian Trustees of any other Charity. -

- Auditor
In so far as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and
« the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information. .

A resolution proposing that Simpson Wood Limited be reappointed as auditor of the charitable company will be put
to the members. '

The Trustees' repont, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, és the .
company directors, on 06 December 2023 and 'signed on its behalf by: '

R Scholefield 4

Chairman Vice Chairman
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Scope of responsibility

As Trustees we' acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that I-Trust Education has an effective and
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failing to achieve business objectives and can only provide reascnable, not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

All Trustees and Members, other than staff of the Trust on the Board are unpaid volunteers from the local
community. As Trustees and Members, we have reviewed and taken account of the gwdance in DfE’'s Governance
Handbook and the competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees have delegated day to day responsibility to the CEO, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and are in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between |-Trust
Education and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also respon5|ble for reporting to the Board of Trustees
any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal controls.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 6 times during the year.

Attendance duriﬁg the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustees : _ - . Meetings attended Out of possible
I Maris (Accounting Officer) (ReS|gned 8 December 2022) 4 6
J P Beale (Trustee) 6 6
R Brownless (Trustee) 5 . 6
R Scholefield (Chairman) 6 6
J Davies (Trustee) 6 6
C Selby (Vice Chairman) ) 5 6
L Waugh (Principal, Chief Executive Officer, Accountlng Officer) -

(Appointed 1 November 2023)- : : 0 0

The composition of the Board during the year has changed with the resignation of the Accounting Officer in the new
financial period and a new Accounting Officer appointed in 2023/24, who will be supported by a new interim Chief
Finance Officer, to allow independence and heightened internal scrutiny in the next financial period.
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The Trust Board has overall legal responsibility for the operation of the Trust and the academies within it. The Trust
Board works in partnership with its family of academies.

The Scheme of Delegation provides for certain functions to be carried out by one or more of the following:

The Executive Board of Trustees and/or
The Local Governing Body

The Accounting Officer and/or

The Principal of the Academy(s)

-The Scheme of Delegation covers six areas:

People

Systems and Structures

Reporting

Being Strategic

Holding to Account
Ensuring Financial Probity

The School Improvement Board is a committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purbose is to:

e o o @

Ensure there is high quality teaching across all academies and year groups

Ensure there is reliable assessment and high-quality tracking information of teaching for all pupils
Consider how teachers and other adults create a positive climate for learning in which pUpI|S are interested
and engaged

Organise and monitor Trustee attendance at work scrutiny and reporting on the events back to the board
Ensure that all teaching staff benefit from appropnate continued professional development and that
performance is rigorously managed

Consider the robustness of appraisal arrangements, and whether there is an appropriate correlatlon
between the quality of teaching and the salary progression of teachers

Consider the impact that teaching has on the promotion of students' spiritual, moral, social and cultural
development, and the promotion of British values

Consider policies for marking and feedback from teachers and their contribution to pupils' Iearnlng

Consider the school's teaching strategies including homework

Consider approaches to promoting effective behaviour for learning at the school :
Advise the board on steps taken to improve the school and develop its capacity for sustained improvement
'by developing high quality teaching, leadership capacity and high professional standards among all staff

The Audit Committee is a committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purposé is to:

Fulfil its responsibilities as set out in these Terms of Reference in line with the Academies Financial
Handbook, the Trust's Financial Regulations and in compliance with the Funding Agreement with the -
Secretary of State of Education

Ensure sound management of the Trust's finances and resources, including proper planning, monltorlng,
probity and value for money

Advise the Board and Accounting Officer on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Trust's govemance, risk
management, internal control and value for money systems and frameworks. An annual report will be
produced by the Audit & Finance Committee in this regard

Advise the Board on the appointment, re-appointment, dismissal and remuneration of the external auditor
Advise the Board on the need for and then, where appropriate, the appointment, reappointment, dismissal
and remuneration of an internal auditor or other assurance provider

Advise the Board on an appropriate programme of work to be delivered by independent assurance

" providers. This programme of work should be to be derived from the Audit & Finance Committee's regard of

the key risks faced by the Trust, the assurance framework in place and its duty to report to the Board

The audit committee conducted its business during the main Board Meeting throughout the 2022/23 year.
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Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use
of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes, as well as estates strategy and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources
received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the academy trust
has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

Ensuring the operation of the Trust demonstrates good value for money and efficient and effective use of
resources

The Academy .Senior Leadership team review expenditure within each budget heading and make adjustments
based on the effectiveness of strategies introduced in previous years, curriculum offer and any new strategies
identified in the Academy Development Plan and Post Ofsted Action Plan.

Tender exercises are regularly undertaken to ensure that contracts are assessed against the marketplace on a
regular basis to ensure that any contracts remain competitive. For purchases above £3,000, but below the tender
limit, three quotes are always required to enable an informed decision to be taken and ensure value for money.

Raising Student Attainment

The Multi Academy Trust is highly inclusive and we have high expectations of progress for all our pupils. The
Academy Trust has in place a rigorous tracking of student progress and achievement, with underachievement
identified and the appropriate interventions put in place. This includes Pupil Premium, Coronavirus (COVID-19):
catch-up funding, PE and Sports Grant and SEN funding.

Pupil Premium
The Multi Academy Trust carefully monitors Pupil Premium expenditure and its impact on improving attainment for
pupils on Free School Meals and Looked after Children. Use of this grant and its effectiveness is published annually
on the Academy website.
To prioritise Pupil Premium spending, we have adopted a tiered approach to define our priorities and ensure
balance. Our tiered approach comprises three categories: :

« Teaching

« -Targeted academic support

« Wider strategies
Within each category, we have chosen three interventions. This focused approach ensures the best chance of-
success for each intervention. ‘

Annually reviewing a one-year pupil premium plan and creating a new plan each year is time-costly ahd ineffective.
We have created a longer-term three-year plan, this approach allows us to dedicate more time preparing the
strategy and introduce light-touch reviews annually.

Coronavirus (COVID-19) Recovery Premium Funding

The Coronavirus (COVID-19) Recovery Premium has been an important source of income allowing the school to
run targeted support, embed whole school teaching strategies and provide wider opportunities to the children. Our
strategy to address the gaps will used the following a three-tier approach:

« Teaching and Whole school strategy - explicit instruction, scaffolding, a well-planned curriculum which
recognises the gaps which have occurred. Pupil assessment and feedback will be used to target support.
Transition will be supported for children who move between Key Stages, including into High School.

. Targeted Academic Support - Small group support from staff or external tutors online. This will include
interventions and extended school time. ‘

« Wider Strategies - addressing issues around lack of experiences, lack of engagement, poor attendance,
and access to technology. This will support parents, carers and children during term-time and into summer
holidays as need is identified.

The plan does not immediately make use of all the funding, instead as assessment data builds, further actions will
be put into place to assist children with interventions, as appropriate.
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National Tutoring Programme

The National Tutoring Programme (NTP) provides schools with funding to spend on targeted academlc support,
delivered by trained tutors. The NTP are providing access to high-quality tuition for the most disadvantaged young
people. The Trust has implemented school-led tutoring across the schools where members of a school's own
personnel delivered tuition to small groups with the maximum permitted tutor/pupil ratio being 1:6 thereby ensuring
high-quality and impactful tuition. The trust delivered 3,068 hours of tutoring across 120 pupils during the 2022/23
academic year with over 80% making better progress than their peers. The positive impact can be seen in 2022/23
Academic Year updates for both schools.

Use of Resources

Trustees and Leadership deploy equipment, materials and services into each academy to provide its pupils and staff
with the facilities required to offer a high quality of teaching and learning. The best use of resources is routinely
reviewed during the operational processes of the Trust, to provide a quality education for all pupils, whilst driving for.
efficiency and effectiveness. The finance team continually strive to reduce costs where possible, whilst ensuring
quality is maintained or improved throughout the academies.

Estates safety and management

The Trustees and the Accounting Officer have ensured throughout the receipt of internal and external reports that
the site remains safe, legally compliant, and continually improving to ensure the pupils receive a good education
within a suitable environment. The Site Manager has an annual budget identified to provide internal assurance or
buy in external specialised support to ensure the estates are compliant. The site has recently had a mechanical and
electrical survey, a fire risk assessment, a health and safety review; all reports have shown positive outcomes.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control has been in place in I-Trust Education for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August
2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key nsks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy
* Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1st September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the
date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees.

The risk and.control framework
The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. It includes:

« Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports -

which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

- Regular reviews of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major
purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
Setting targets to measure financial and other performance
Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital mvestment) guidelines
Delegation of authority and segregation of duties
Identification and management of risks

e o o @

The Board of Trustees has decided:
» To appoint School Business Services and Raise Education in conjunctlon with the Accounting Officer, to
perform additional audits based on key priorities identified within the risk register.
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The reviewer's role includes performing a range of checks on the Academy Trust's financial systems and processes.
In particular, the checks conducted in the current period included:

« Monthly management reporting, year-end procedures, and the budgeting/cashflow process

« Website and policy reviews

« Payroll and accounting procedures review

- Governance protocols, induction, self-evaluation and risk registers

- Income and banking procedures review

« Purchasing, procurement and payroll reviews

The reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees, on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of
the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities. Any material weaknesses were reported to the board by the
Accounting Officer. The programme for the 2023/24 year will provide reasonable assurance as to the adequacy and
effectiveness of the key controls relating, but not limited to the following areas:
« Accounting system
Financial returns and management accounts
Staffing and payroll
Budgeting
Bank reconciliation
Income and expenditure
Cash management
Procurement and best value
Website compllance
Governance
Policies

Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, the Business Director has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question, the review has been informed by:

. The work of the external auditor(s)
. The work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework’ .
The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal

control by the audit committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure contlnuous |mprovement of the
system isin place

"Approved by order of the Board of Trustees on 06 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

R Scholefield W 'L Waugh /

Chairman Principal, Chief Executive Officer, Accounting Officer
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As Accounting Officer of I-Trust Education, | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust Board of
Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of any material irregularity, impropriety, and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received, including for estates safety and management, under
the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration, | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including
responsibilities for estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the academy trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
all funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academy trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

| confirm that no instances of material irregular, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees
and the ESFA. : ‘

L Waugh

Accounting Officer

06 December 2023
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The Trustees (who are also the Trustees/Trustees of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including
its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

« Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; .

« Observe the methods and principles in the Charities’ SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023;

- Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

» Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 06 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

R Scholefield MW , - C Selby

Chairman Vice Chairman
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Opinion

We have audited the accounts of i-Trust Education for the year ended 31 August 2023 which comprise the
statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and notes to the accounts, including
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the accounts:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended; :

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023. '

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

"Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information ‘

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the accounts and our
auditor's report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
accounts or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether
this gives rise to a material misstatement in the accounts themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year for
which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the Trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report, including the incorporated strategic
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires

us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are notin agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

-+ . certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or -

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of Trustees responsvbllmes the Trustees are responsible for the
preparation of the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the accounts, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy
Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether thé accounts as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
* decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.
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Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities including fraud

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including
fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:
« we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the
financial statements or the operations of the academy, including Companies Act 2006, Charities SORP
2019, the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, taxation legislation, data protection and anti-bribery
legislation;
. we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making
enquiries of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and
. identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained
alert to instances of non- compllance throughout the audit. ‘ .

We assessed the susceptibility of the academy’s financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining
an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:
"« making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptlbmty to fraud, their
knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud;
. considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations and.
» performed analytical procedures on the fi nancual statements compared to previous years to |dent|fy any
unusual or unexpected relatlonshlps '

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:
- tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions. Journal listing and the full nominal was scrutinised as
part of the journal review;
. assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accountlng estimates were
indicative of potential bias and;
. investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions. CIF funding, Catch-up pupil premium
and additional support regarding Covid-19 was scrutinised

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures
which included, but were not limited to: :
. agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlymg supporting documentation;
. reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and,
-« enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and
regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance.
Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to
enquiry of the governors and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may
invalve deliberate concealment or collusion.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: https://
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed. .

Daniel McAllister FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Simpson Wood Limited ' 6 December 2023
Chartered Accountants . .
‘Statutory Auditor : ) Bank Chambers
Market Street
Huddersfield
HD1 2EW
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO I-TRUST EDUCATION AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING
AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 13 October 2016 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by i-Trust Education during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to the
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to i-Trust Education and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter.
Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the i-Trust Education and ESFA those matters we are
required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or

.assume responsibility to anyone other than i-Trust Education and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the
conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of i-Trust Education's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of i-Trust Education’s funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 30 August 2013 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September
2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance,
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of
the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received
during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament
or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

~ We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our

engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity. .

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and

consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propnety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure. :

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
. consideration of the evidence - supporting the Accounting Officer's statement on regularity, propriety and
compliance which may include review and corroboration of the most recent Financial Management and
Governance Evaluation or equivalent;

. evaluation of the general control environment of the Academy Trust, extending the procedures required for
financial statements to include regularity;

. assessment and testing sample of the specific control activities over regularity of a particular activity;

. when performing sample testing of expenditure, considering whether the activity is permissible within the
Academy Trust's framework of authorities.
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Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them. '

Reporting Accountant M

Simpson Wood Limited . :

Dated: 06 December 2023
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants
Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations
Other trading activities

Investments

Total

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Charitable activities:

- Educational operations

Total

- Net income/{expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit
pension schemes :

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Notes

(4]

17

19

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Tota[ Total
funds General Fixed asset 2023 2022

£ £ £ £ £

40,734 - 56,115 96,849 35,249
46,197 4,822,798 - 4868995 4,573,375
383,072 : - - 383,072 351,335
67 - - 67 70
470,070 4,822,798 56,115 5,348,983 4,960,029 .
210,733 ' 35,934 - V246,667 180,037
240,855 5,069,271 243,923 5,554,049 5.652,913
451,588 5,105,205 243,923 5,800,716 5,832,950
18,482 (282,407) (187,808)  (451,733) (872,921)

. (152,187) 151,465 722 - -
.- 779,000 - 779,000 4,189,000
(133,705) 648,058 (187,086) 327,267 , 3,316,079
213,129 (435,827) 8,375,862 8,153,164 4,837,085
79,424 212,231 8,188,776  8;480,431 8,153,164
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Comparative year information Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Year ended 31 August 2022 funds General Fixed asset 2022
Notes £ £ £ £
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 17,175 - 18,074 35,249
Charitable activities: . '
- Funding for educational operations 4 47,402 4,525,973 - 4573375
Other trading activities 5 351,335 - - 351,335
Investments 6 70 - - 70
Total ' 415,982 4,525,973 18,074 4,960,029
Expenditure on: )
Raising funds ‘ 7 172,441 7,596 - 180,037
Charitable activities: '
- Educational operations 8 190,757 5,212,752 249,404 5,652,913
Total _ 7 363,198 5,220,348 249,404 5,832,950
Net income/(expenditure) v 52,784 (694,375)  (231,330) (872,921)
Transfers between funds ' 17 (135,070) (71,406) 206,476 -
Other recognised gains/(losses) :
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes 19 - 4,189,000 - 4,189,000
Net movement in funds (82,286) 3,423,219 (24,854) 3,316,079
Reconciliation of funds .
Total funds brought forward 295,415 (3,859,046) 8,400,716 4,837,085
Total funds carried forward . 21 3,129 (435,827) 8,375,862.

8,153,164
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Notes

12

13

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 14

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more

than one year

15

Net assets excluding pension asset/(liability)

Defined benefit pension scheme

asset/(liability)

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy Trust:

Restricted funds

- Fixed asset funds

- Restricted income funds
- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

19

17

17

2023
£ £

8,169,792

151,246

340,014

491,260

(353,598)

137,662

8,307,454

(19,023)

8,288,431

192,000

8,480,431

8,188,776
20,231
192,000.
8,401,007
79,424

8,480,431

2022
£ £

8,375,862

188,718
386,254 -

574,972

(329,306)°

245,666

8,621,528

(25,364)

8,596,164

(443,000)

8,153,164

8,375,862
7,173
(443,000)
7,940,035
213,129

8,153,164

The accounts on pages 31 to 55 were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue on 06 December 2023

and are signed on their behalf by:

R Scholefield
Chairman

C Selby
Vice Chairm

Company rgQistration number 07559439 (England and Wales)

U7

v
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in operating activities 21

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long term bank loan

Net cash used in financing activities

- Net decrease in cash énd cash equivalents in fhe
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2023

67
56,115

(37,853)

(6,341)

(58,228)

18,329

(6.341)

(46,240)

386,254

340,014

2022
£ £
(19,224)
70
18,074
(224,549)
(206,405)
(6,341).
(6,341)
(231,970)
618,224
386,254
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I-TRUST EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied conS|stentIy, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts
Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least
one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts and have concluded that the Academy Trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no
material uncertalntles about the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern.

Note 25 explalns the expected changes in the MAT within the next year, which should conclude with the
orderly winding up of the MAT. The Trustees have therefore continued to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the accounts.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entittement occurs before income is
received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entiltement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

Sponsorship income -

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related
conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no perfofmance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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14

1.5

Accounting policies (Continued)

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from
other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading
activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the accounts until they are
sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’. -

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case
the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and
support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Assets costing £ 5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of
financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the
restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful
economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the Academy Trust's depreciation policy.
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1.6

1.7

1.8

Accounting policies {Continued)

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold land & buildings 2% straight line
Leasehold land & buildings 2% straight line
Computer equipment 15% straight line
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 33% straight line
“Motor vehicles - 20% straight line

For assets transferred from thé predecessorv School, depreciation is calculated on the original cost rather than
the value at which the asset was transferred.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. DepreC|at|on on these assets is not charged untll

- they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of financial activities.

v

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will
pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of servuces |t must

" provide.

Leased assets v
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments
The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and

* financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Financial assets:
Trade and other debtors are basic fnancnal instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost.
Prepayments are not financial instruments. -

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value. -

Financial liabilities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.
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1

1.9

1.10

Accounting policies {Continued)

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes.

Pensions benefits )

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
(TPS") -and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded

.multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is

treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent

" to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.

The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The
amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as

_incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial

activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate -
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting '
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposés imposed by the
Education Funding Agency where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from the Education
Funding Agency and Department for Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. '
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2

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting -
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 19, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2013
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2023. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability. .

Critical areas of judgement S _
There are not deemed to be any areas of judgement which would have a significant effect on the accounts.

~ Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted - Total Total

funds funds 2023 2022

: £ £ £ £

Capital grants L ' ' - 56,115 56,115 18,074
Other donations o ‘ ~ 40,734 - - 40,734 17,175

40,734 56,115 96,849 35,249
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4

Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

DfE/ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG)
Other DfE/ESFA grants:
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Others ‘

Other government grants
Local authority grants

COVID-19 additional funding
DfE/ESFA

Catch-up premium -

Other incoming resources

Total funding

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2023 2022
£ £ £ £

- 3,635,052 3,635,052 3,518,510

- 107,149 107,149 103,984

- 351,454 351,454 334,435

- 245,996 245,996 - 102,546

- 4,339,651 4,339,651 4,059,475

- 448,963 448,963 403,864

- 34,184 34,184 62,634
46,197 - 46,197 47,402
46,197 4,822,798 4,868,995 4,573,375

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding government support scheme in response to
the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under "additional funding".

Catch-up pupil premium covered additional support and tutorlng glven as a means to bridge the gap in

educatlon during lockdown measures.

Other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Educational visits
Other income

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2023 2022

£ £ £ £

53 - 53 59

39,976 - 39,976 32,087
343,043 - 343,043 319,189
383,072 - 383,072 351,335

-40-



I-TRUST EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

6

Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Other investment income 67 - 67 70
Expenditure
. Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs’ Premises Other 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Expenditure on raising funds o
- Direct costs - - 177,279 - 69,388 246,667 180,037
Academy's educational operations .
- Direct costs 3,349,136 243,923 237,668 3,830,727 3,586,903
* - Allocated support costs 971,061 455,966 296,295 1,723,322 2,066,009
4,497 476 699,889 603,351 5,800,716 5,832,949
Net incbmél(expenditure) for the year includes: 2023 2022
£ £
Operating lease rentals - 20,710 12,597
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 243,923 249,403
Fees payable to auditor for: '
- Audit ) ' 10,000 10,000
- Other services o 1,000 1,000
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 12,000 66,000
Charitable activities
’ ' Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Direct costs
Educational operations 6,778 = 3,823,949 3,830,727 -3,586,903
Support costs
Educational operations 234,077 1,489,245 1,723,322 2,066,009
240,855 5,313,194 5,554,049 5,652,912
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Charitable activities

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs
Premises costs
Legal costs

Other support costs

Governance costs

Central Services

(Continued)

2023 2022

£ £

971,061 , 1,332,459
455,966 392,636
1,290 188
283,043 323,457
11,962 17,269
1,723,322 2,066,009

Whitehill Community Academy has recharged services totalling £76,276 to Wainstalls School. A breakdown of

these services and the basis of recharging is given in the table below:

IAmounts
\Wainstalls (£)

recharged

tolService Charged

Basis of recharging

12,790

School meal recharges (2023)

Based on invoice

12,475 School meal recharges (2023) Based on invoice

112,897 School meal recharges (2023) Based on invoice
9,709 Management costs (2023) Based on invoice
9,709 [Management costs (2023) Based on invoice
9,709 lManagement costs (2023) Based on invoice
3,463 Insurances Based on invoice
883 Copier lease Based on invoice
883 " {Copier lease Based on invoice
883 Copier lease Based on invoice
810 Subscriptions Based on invoice
800 Subscriptions Based on invoice
734 Subscriptions Based on invoice
407 Subscriptions Based on invoice
82 Room hire (2023) Based on invoice
42 Fuel charges

Based on invoice

School meals were charged at cost that being £2.10 pér head.
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Staff
Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were:
2023 2022
£ £
Wages and salaries 3,348,608 3,122,605
Social security costs : : . 294,315 265,928
Pension costs o . 796,652 1,182,901
Staff costs - employees : ) 4,439,575 4,571,434
Agency staff costs ’ ‘ ’ ‘ 28,095 32,625
Staff restructuring costs . 29,806 Co-
: . 4,497,476 4,604,059
Staff development and other staff costs . o 15,299 14,001
Total staff expenditure . 4512775  4.618,060
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments 29,806 -
Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:
2023 2022
Number Number
Teachers . . . 34 _ 33
Administration and support 138 - 135
Management A . ' 9 9
181 177

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer

national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2023

Number

£60,000 - £65,000 annual - 2
£70,001 - £75,000 annual -
£75,001 - £80,000 annual 1
£80,001 - £85,000 annual 1
£100,001 - £105,000 annual 1

2022
NumberA

N =
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1

12

Staff ’ {Continued)

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions)
received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £567,555 (2022 -
£527,332).

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and
staff, and not in respect of their services as Trustees. Other Trustees did not receive any payments, other than
expenses, from the academy trust in respect of their role as Trustees. During the period no travel and
subsistence expenses were reimbursed to trustees.

The value of Trustees' remuneration (including pension contributions) was as follows: A
| Maris (MAT Business Dlrector/Accountlng Officer) (Resigned 8 December 2022 as Accountlng Officer)
Remuneration: £20,001-£25,000 (2022: £75,001-£80,000)
Employer's pension contribution: £0-£5,000 (2022: £10,001-£15,000)
L Waugh (Principal/Chief Operating Offcer/Accountmg Officer)
. Remuneration: £75,001-£80,000 (2022: £70,001-£75,000)
Employer's pension contribution: £15,001-£20,000 (2022: £15, 001-£20 ,000)

Other related party transactions involving the Trustees are set.out within the related parties note.

Tangible fixed assets : .
Freehold Leasehold Computer Fixtures, Motor Total

land & land & equipment fittings and vehicles
buildings buildings equipment

A £ £ £ £ £ £
Cost ' - . :
At 1 September 2022 7,605,249 2,186,464 282,082 355,802 28,318 10,457,915
Additions . - - L - 37,853 - 37,853
At 31 August:2023 7,605,249 2,186,464 282,082 393,655 28,318 10,495,768
Depreciation _
At 1 September 2022 1,390,488 222,328 240,714 214,780 13,743 2,082,053
Charge for the year 137,094 35,990 26,801 40,738 3,300 243,923
At 31 August 2023 1,527,582 258,318 267,515 255,518 17,043 2,325,976
Net book value
At 31 August 2023 6,077:667 1,928,146 14,567 138,137 11,275 8,169,792
At 31 August-2022 6,214,761 1,964,136 41,368 141,022 14,575 8,375,862
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13 Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable .
Prepayments and accrued income

14  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

- Government loans
Trade creditors
Other creditors i
Accruals and deferred income

15 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Government loans

Analysis of loans

Wholly repayable within five years
Less: included in current liabilities

Amounts included above

Loan maturity v

Debt due in one year or less

Due in more than one year but not more than two years
Due in more than two years but not more than five years

2023 2022
£ £
38,226 43,340
5,224 28,174
107,796 117,204
151,246 188,718
2023 2022
£ £
6,341 6,341
84,337 39,363
- 52
262,920 283,550
353,598 329,306
2023 2022
£ £
19,023 25,364
2023 2022
£ £
25,364 31,705
(6,341) (6,341)
19,023 25,364
6,341 6,341
6,341 6,341
12,682 19,023
25,364 31,705

The Government loan is an interest free Salix loan. In accordance with the Accounts Direction the loan has

been recognised as the amount received less repayments made net of any interest.
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17

Deferred income

Deferred income is included within:

Creditors due within one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2022

Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2023

Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Catch-up premium

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other government grants
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

' Restricted fixed asset funds
_ Inherited on conversion

DfE group capital grants
Capital expenditure from GAG
Dfe donated laptops

Private sector capital
sponsorship

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

2023 2022

£ £

135,959 134,715

134,715 125,465

(134,715) (125,465)

135,959 134,715

135,959 134,715

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure transfers 2023

£ £ £ £ £

- 3,635,052 (3,566,959) (68,093) -

- 107,149 (115,077) 7,928 -

- 351,454 (456,334) - 90,828 (14,052)

- 34,184 (55,189) 535 (20,470)

2,246 245,996 (152,539) 3,969 - 99,672

- 448,963 (615,107) 116,298 (49,846)

4,927 - - - 4,927
(443,000) - (144,000) 779,000 192,000
(435,827) 4,822,798 (5,105,205) " 930,465 212,231
5,747,952 - (1'20,382) - 5,627,570
1,922,056 56,115 (54,178) - 1,923,993
692,437 - (61,325) 722 631,834
11,912 - (6,533) - 5,379
1,505 - (1,505) - -
8,375,862 56,115 (243,923) 722 8,188,776
7,940,035 4,878,913 (5,349,128) 931,187 8,401,007
213,129 470,070 (451,588) (1562,187) 79,424
8,153,164 5,348,983 (5,800,716) 779,000 8,480,431
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Funds (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
General Annual Grant must be used for the normal running costs of the Academy.

Universal infant free school meals (UIFSM) provides funding to offer free school meals in reception, year 1
and year 2.

Pupil premium grant, is specnﬁcally to raise the attainment of disadvantaged pupils and close the gap between
them and their peers. . v

The Pupnl Premium funds account is in deficit as it has been supported financially by unrestricted funds and
GAG funds in order to ensure the provision offered provides the required educational impact and student
support to give our pupils the best possible chance of opening future doors to their education.

Catch-up premium was part of the government initiative to bridge the gap in education that was experienced
as a result of Covid-19. The grant has been used on various additional educational resources to support

pupils:

The Recovery Premium funding has been utilised since the Covid-19 pandemic to help support smaller
interventions, and ensure the impact on those more vulnerable cohorts is minimised. These funds have been
supported within the financial year from the GAG restricted funds for the provision of education for our pupils.

Other Dfe/Efa includes teachers pay and pension grant and ESFA sports grant.

Other government grants includes the provision of early year's education. This funding is specifically to
provide all 3 to 4 year olds-in England with free early education. Whitehill Community Academy received
£232,307 for early years childcare provision. Nursery spending spent in the financial year 2022/23 was a
combination of staffing expenditure, nursery resources and central costs.

Other government grants are also in deficit as the funding we receive does not cover the level of supervision
and educational support we are legally obliged to offer our children that are in need of support (e.g. SEN
support).

Other restricted fund includes trip money to support trips.

Restricted fixed assets were funded by government grants, GAG, and general unrestricted funds. This was in

_order to support the completion of the nursery, roof repair and boiler replacement in previous years.

Unrestricted fund includes the provision of care before and after school during term time.
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17 Funds (Continued)
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure transfers 2022
£ . £ £ £
Restricted general funds .
General Annual Grant (GAG) . ' 54,524 3,518,510  (3,259,458) (313,576) -
UIFSM . - 103,984 (110,065) 6,081 - -
Pupil premium 44 696 334,435 . (423,154) 44,023 -
~ Catch-up premium 20,036 62,634 (91,821) 9,151 -
Other DfE/ESFA grants ©12,771 102,546 (116,058) 2,987 2,246
Other government grants . - 403,864 (583,792) 179,928 -
Other restricted funds 4,927 - - - 4,927
Pension reserve (3,996,000) - (636,000) 4,189,000 (443,000) -
(3,859,046) 4,525,973 (5,220,348) 4ﬁ17594 (435,827)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversion '~ 5,868,334 - (120,382) - 5,747,952
DfE group capital grants 1,955,975 18,074 (58,526) - 1,915,523
Capital expenditure from GAG 554,199 - (68,238) 206,476 692,437
- Dfe donated laptops : 18,445 - (6,533) - 11,912
Private sector capital - : ‘
sponsorship ’ 3,763 - 4,275 - 8,038
8,400,716 1&074 (249,404) 206,476 8,375,862
Total restricted funds 4,541,670 4,544,047 (5,469,752) 4,324,070 7,940,035
Unrestricted funds
" General funds ) 295,415 415,982 (363,198) (135,070) 213,129 -
Total funds 4,837,085 4,960,029 (5,832,350) 4,189,000 /8,153,164
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17  Funds
Total funds analysis by academy
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows:

Whitehilt Community Academy
Wainstalls School

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Total funds

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

(Continued)

2023 2022

£ I
(12,970) 146,630
112,625 73,672

99,655 220,302

8,188,776 8,375,862
192,000 (443,000)

8,480,431 8,163,164

Teaching and Other costs
educational Other support Educational ° excluding Total Total
support staff staff costs supplies depreciation . 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
Whitehill Community )
Academy o ) 2,841,773 799,695 289,918 - 471,854 4,403,240 4,487,048
191,928 1,153,553 1,096,502

Wainstalls School . - 678,533 192,413 90,679

3,520,306 992,108 380,597

663,782 5,556,793 5,583,550

18  Analysis of net assets between funds

Restricted funds: Total

_ Unrestricted
Funds General Fixed asset Funds

£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 8,169,792 8,169,792
Current assets 79,424 367,488 44,348 491,260
Current liabilities 19,023 (347,257) (25,364) (353,598)
Non-current liabilities (19,023) - - (19,023)
Pension scheme asset : - 192,000 - 192,000
Total net assets 79,424 212,231 8,188,776 8,480,431
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19

Analysis of net assets between funds : (Continued)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Funds General Fixed asset Funds

£ £ £ £

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are
represented by:

Tangible fixed assets - - 8,375,862 8,375,862
Current assets i ’ - 213,128 330,138 31,705 574,972
Current liabilities _ - (322,965) (6.341) (329,306)
Non-current liabilities : B o - "~ (25,364) (25,364)
Pension scheme liability - (443,000) - (443,000)
Total net assets 213,129 (435,827) 8,375,862 8,153,164

Pension and similar obligations

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by West Yorkshire Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2019.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Teachers' Pension Scheme

Infroduction
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is-a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the

‘Teachers’ Pension .Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts All

teachers have the optlon to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.

‘The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a

percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on § March 2019.
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19 Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

« employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge)

- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million giving a notional
past service deficit of £22,000 million '

« the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPIl. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of
prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

During the year the employer contribution rate was 23.68%. The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2024.

The pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £386,421 (2022: £377,777).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is.an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets héld in sepérate trustee-administered
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 16.7% for
employers and 5.5-12.5% for employees.

The estimated value of employers contributions for the forthcoming year is £286,000

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published

on GOV.UK.

Total contributions made » 2023 2022
£ £

Employer's contributions ’ 272,000 237,000

Employees' contributions . 101,000 88,000

Total contributions 373,000 325,000
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Pension and similar obligations

Principal actuarial assumptions 2023

%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.85
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.60
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.10
Inflation assumption (CPI) ' : 2.60

(Continued)

2022
%

3.95
2.70
4.10
270

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2023 2022
Years Years
Retiring today
- Males ' ' 21.0 21.8
- Females : _ ‘ _ 241 246
Retiring in 20 years »
- Males , ' 222 225
- Females : ) ' 251 25.7
Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:
2023 2022
Discount rate + 0.1% ' : (111,000) (135,000)
Discount rate - 0.1% : 117,000 141,000
Mortality assumption + 1 year : o (139,000) (168,000)
Mortality assumption - 1 year ) ' ' 139,000 158,000
Salaries +0.1% ' ‘ 11,000 118,000
Salaries -0.1% ' - (11,000) (118,000)
Rate increases +0.1% . 106,000 17,000
Rate increases -0.1% A : o (100,000) -(17,000)
The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme 2023 2022
: Fair value Fair value
£ £
Equities ) : 4,607,000 4,118,000
Government & corporate bonds 685,000 581,000
Cash 224,000 208,000
Property 190,000 208,000
Other assets ' ) : 46,000 78,000
Total market value of assets 5,752,000 5,193,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £278,000 (2022: £70,000).

-52-



I-TRUST EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

19 Pension and similar obligations {Continued)
Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities 2023 2022
£ £
Current service cost . 404,000 807,000
Interest income (219,000) (85,000)
Interest cost ' ' 231,000 151,000
Total operating charge . 416,000 - 873,000
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 2023 2022
£ £
At 1 September 2022 o 5,636,000 8,870,000
Current service cost ' 404,000 807,000
interest cost S o 231,000 | 151,000
Employee contributions 101,000 88,000
Actuarial gain (720,000)  (4,204,000)
Benefits paid ’ (52,000) (76,000)
At 31 August 2023 ' 5,560,000 5,636,000

Changes‘ in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets o ,
' 2023 2022

' £ £
At 1 September 2022 . ' 5,193,000 4,874,000
Interest income ) . 219,000 85,000
Actuarial (gain)/loss ‘ v 59,000 (15,000)
Employer contributions ) , - 272,000 237,000
Employee contributions : 101,000 88,000
Benefits paid (92,000) (76,000)
At 31 August 2023 . ’ : ' 5,752,000 5,193,000

20 Insurance for trustees and officers

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the trust has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and
Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors, or omissions whilst on trust business. The insurance
provides cover up to £5 million on any one claim and the cost for the year 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 was
£18,539 (2022: £17,421 .60) under an Education Combined Policy.
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21 Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

2023 2022
Notes £ £
Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the statement of
financial activities) . (451,733) (872,921)
Adjusted for: o
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income ) . (56,115) (18,074)
Investment income receivable 6 (67) (70)
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 19 132,000 ~ 570,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 19 12,000 66,000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 243,923 249,403
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 37,472 (38,874)
Increase in creditors ‘ ' . 24,292 25,312
Net cash used in operating activities : S (58,228) (19,224)

22 Analysis of changes in net funds : .
1 September  Cash flows 31 August

2022 2023

£ £ - £

Cash : 386,254 (46,240) 340,014
Loans falling due within one year , (6,341) - (6,341)
Loans falling due after more than one year ‘ (25,364) 6,341 (19,023)
354,549 (39,899) 314,650

23  Long-term commitments

Operating leases _ .
At 31 August 2023 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was: ’ . . ‘ T

2023 . 2022

£ £

Amounts due within one year - 19,713 20,710
Amounts due in two and five years 32,242 48,807
51,955 69,517
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25

26

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust's operations and the composition of the Board of Trustees being
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which Trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's length
and in accordance with the Academy Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

No such transactions were conducted in the year.
Post balance sheet events

Whitehill Community Academy will be re-brokered into Trinity MAT in January 2024, and it is planned for
Wainstalls Primary School to become one of the founding members of their new trust; Pennine Alliance
Learning Trust. It is believed this transfer will happen at April or May 2024. Upon the re-brokerage of both
schools within |-Trust Education to other larger multi academy trusts the process to reconcile and dissolve I-

‘Trust Education will begin and is planned to be completed within the next financial period.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of
it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she
ceases to be a member. ‘ ‘ '
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